ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 22, 2016

9:00 a. m
VEMBERS PRESENT
Senator Bill Stoltze, Chair
Senat or John Coghill, Vice Chair
Senat or Charlie Huggi ns
Senator Bill W el echowski

VEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Lesil MGQuire
COW TTEE CALENDAR
SENATE BI LL NO. 204
"An Act naming a shooting range in the Knik R ver Public Use
Area the Kenny and Patti Barber Shooting Range."
- MOVED SB 204 OQUT OF COW TTEE
SENATE BI LL NO. 150
"An Act adding the conmssioner of mlitary and veterans'
affairs to the nmenbership of the Council on Donestic Violence
and Sexual Assault."
- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 204
SHORT TI TLE: KENNY & PATTI BARBER SHOOTI NG RANGE
SPONSOR(s): STATE AFFAI RS

03/ 16/ 16 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 16/ 16 (S) STA
03/ 22/ 16 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: SB 150
SHORT TI TLE: MVA COW SSI ONER MEMBER OF CDVSA
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- March 22, 2016



01/ 21/ 16 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 21/ 16 (S) STA, FIN
03/ 22/ 16 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

DANI EL GEORGE, staff

Senator Stoltze

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded an overvi ew of SB 204.

Rl CHARD BI SHOP, representing hinself
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 204.

EARL LACKEY, representing hinself
Wasilla, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 204.

RI CK ELLIS, representing hinself
Wasi |l a, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 204.

TODD CLARK, representing hinself
Wasi |l a, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 204.

GARY STEVENS, representing hinself
Chugi ak, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 204.

ROD ARNO, Executive Director

Al aska Qut door Counci

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 204.

RON SOMERVI LLE, representing hinself
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 204.

JENNI FER EHVANN, representing hersel f
Pal mer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 204.

LYNN KEOGH, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 22, 2016



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 204.

RON JOHNSQN, representing hinself
Butte, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 204.

ED FOGELS, Deputy Conmi ssioner

Al aska Departnment of Natural Resources

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 204.

LAURI E HUMVEL, Conmi ssi oner

Al aska Departnent of Mlitary & Veterans' Affairs
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 150.

CARMEN LOWNRY, Executive Director
Al aska Network on Donestic Violence and Sexual Assault (ANDVSA)
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 150.

JAYNE ANDREEN, Chair, President

Al aska Wnen's Lobby, Al aska Public Health Association
Dougl as, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 150.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
9: 00: 56 AM
CHAIR BILL STOLTZE called the Senate State Affairs Standing

Committee neeting to order at 9:00 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Coghill, Huggins, and Chair Stoltze.

SB 204- KENNY & PATTI BARBER SHOOTI NG RANGE

9:01: 52 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE announced the consi derati on of SB 204.

9:02: 22 AM

DANI EL GEORGE, staff, Senator Stoltze, Alaska State Legislature,
Juneau, Al aska, presented a video show ng a recent news vignette
for the new shooting range at the Knik River Public Use Area
(KRPUA) in Butte, Al aska.

CHAIR STOLTZE stated that Kenny and Patti Barber were ordinary
Al askans who have done a lot of extraordinary things. He said

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 22, 2016



the Barbers were integral in helping develop KRPUA. He noted
that he and Senator Huggins started the legislation for KRPUA
t hat unani nously passed the Legislature in 2006.

9:04: 47 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI j oi ned the comm ttee neeting.

9: 06: 56 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS commented that Kenny and Patti Barber were |ike
relatives that always were l|ooking to do things and never
| ooking for credit. He pointed out that the Barbers were well
known in the Mat-Su area, especially in the sporting comunity.
He stated that Barbers deserved their nane recognition at the
KPRUA shooting range. He comended Chair Stoltze for making
things |ike KPRUA work. He revealed that Chair Stoltze added
| anguage in the KPRUA bill that specified the |and not be used
as a park and be designated as a public-use area for sporting
with the guarantee for hunting and fishing. He opined that the
country's national forests have becone national preserves where
an individual cannot do anything because nore and nore things
are prohibited.

CHAI R STOLTZE stated that the Barbers were fiscally responsible
people that did not crave the attention from SB 204. He pointed
out that transition |anguage was included in the |egislation
where the signs with the Barbers' nanes would not be erected
until the current signs wear out.

He announced that the commttee would hear public testinony on
SB 204.

9:09: 38 AM

RI CHARD Bl SHOCP, representing hinself, Fai r banks, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 204. He said nam ng the range for the
Bar bers was appropriate and noted their involvenent wth KRPUA.

9:10: 54 AM

EARL LACKEY, representing hinself, Wasilla, Al aska, testified in
support of SB 204. He said the Barbers were instrunmental in the
fundi ng and devel opnent of KRPUA and the shooting range.

9:12:38 AM

RICK ELLIS, representing hinself, Wasilla, Al aska, testified in
support of SB 204. He revealed that he worked with the Barbers
on a nunber of outdoor rel ated projects.

9:13:33 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- March 22, 2016



TODD CLARK, representing hinself, Wasilla, Al aska, testified in
support of SB 204. He said the KRUPA and shooting range
devel opnment's success wuld be hard to imagine wthout the
Barber's help. He said namng the shooting range after the
Barbers was a small thing when considering the ambunt of effort,
time, and sacrifice the Barbers had put into the whole area and
comunity as a whol e.

9:14: 56 AM

GARY STEVENS, representing hinself, Chugiak, Al aska, testified
in support of SB 204. He stated that he normally did not support
namng public facilities after individuals, but namng the
shooting range after the Barbers was extrenmely well deserved.

9:15: 33 AM

RCOD ARNO, Executive Director, Al aska Qutdoor Council, Fairbanks

Al aska, testified that the Al aska Qutdoor Council was in support
of SB 204. He set forth that the Barbers have always been
supporters of hunters, trappers, and outdoor access. He stated
that nam ng the shooting range would let future hunters know the
Barber's contribution for outdoor folks in Al aska.

CHAIR STOLTZE noted that the Alaska Qutdoor Council passed a
resol uti on supporting SB 204.

9:17: 09 AM

RON SOMERVI LLE, representing hinself, Juneau, Al aska, testified
in support of SB 204. He said he has known the Barbers since his
service on the Alaska Board of Game. He asserted that the
Bar bers were hunble Al askans who always worked for things that
benefited everybody. He said nam ng the shooting range for the
Barbers was inportant in the recognition for the work the
Bar bers had done.

9:18: 39 AM

JENNI FER EHVANN, representing herself, Palner, Alaska, testified
in support of SB 204. She noted that she chaired the Matanuska
Val l ey Advisory Conmittee and served on the Matanuska-Susitna
Borough Fish and WIldlife Conm ssion. She revealed that she has
worked with the Barbers throughout the |ast five years and noted
that the couple has acted as nentors to her. She said she was
amazed to see the support of the shooting range and has watched
the facility develop with the know edge that the Barbers were
behind the project. She remarked that the Barbers' volunteering
and efforts have not gone unnoticed and the community was in
support of the effort that the Barbers have put forward.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 22, 2016



9:20: 42 AM

LYNN KEOGH, representing hinself, Anchorage, Alaska, testified
in support of SB 204. He stated that he could not think of two
nore deserving people than the Barbers. He reveal ed that he has
known the Barbers for over 20 years and their tireless efforts
has benefited Al askans for continued opportunities to enjoy the
out door s.

9:21:26 AM

RON JOHNSON, representing hinself, Butte, Alaska, testified in
support of SB 204. He asserted that he knows of no one that has
tirelessly given their time, energy, and noney than the Barbers.
He stated that the Barbers have taken a lead in nany outdoor
issues for a long tine.

CHAIR STOLTZE noted that the Butte Community Council was the
first to endorse the nam ng of the shooting range before SB 204
was i ntroduced.

9:23:36 AM

ED FOGELS, Deputy Conmi ssioner, Alaska Departnent of Natural
Resour ces, Anchorage, Alaska, testified in support of SB 204. He
said he has nothing but admration and respect for the Barbers.
He declared that the Barbers were true stewards of the land and
have been a great help to the departnment's |and managers in
addition to taking care of KRPUA' s vast and heavily used area
He noted that KRPUA was difficult to manage prior to its
devel opment and the Barbers have helped solve the area's
problenms. He set forth that KRPUA was a beautiful place and the
departnent could not think of a better name for the shooting
range. He stated that keeping the shooting range's current
signage until they wore out was the reason for the bill's zero-
fiscal note.

9:25: 04 AM

CHAI R STOLTZE announced that public testinony was closed. He
sunmarized that the zero-fiscal note reflected the Barbers
val ues for not wanting dollars spent on signage versus pronoting
the facility.

9:26: 00 AM

SENATOR HUGEA NS noved to report SB 204, [29-LS1576\W, from
committee wth individual recomendations and attached zero-
fiscal note.

9:26: 20 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 22, 2016



CHAI R STOLTZE announced that seeing no objection, SB 204 noves
fromcomm ttee.

9:26: 25 AM
At ease.

SB 150- DWA COVMM SSI ONER MEMBER OF CDVSA

9:28: 01 AM

VICE-CHAIR COGHILL <called the commttee back to order and
announced the consideration of SB 150. He explained that SB 150
woul d add the conm ssioner of the Al aska Departnment of Mlitary
& Veterans' Affairs (DWA) to the nenbership of the Alaska
Council on Donestic Violence and Sexual Assault (CDVSA).

9:28: 53 AM

LAURIE HUMVEL, Commissioner, Alaska Departnment of Mlitary &
Veterans' Affairs, Anchorage, Alaska, testified in support of SB
150. She remarked that her position would be a logical addition
to CDVSA. She noted that she was in daily contact with a ful
spectrum of mlitary personnel, veterans, and their famlies
t hat enconpassed the foll ow ng:

e 22,800 active-conponent mlitary personnel.

e 4,100 Nation Guard soldiers and airnen.

e 74,000 veterans.

e 101,000 total service nenbers and veterans wth 189, 000
dependent fam |y nenbers.

e 290,000 Al askans, approxinately 40 percent of the state's
popul ati on.

She said the mlitary personnel, veterans, and famly nenbers
have uni que perspectives, valuable skills, and talents of great
benefit to their comunities; they have extensive experience in
facing social ills that plagues everyone, including sexual
assault and donestic violence on both mlitary and civilian
comunities. She set forth that by working with active service
menbers and veterans every day, she cannot help but share their
experiences, challenges, struggles, and successes in overcon ng
sexual assault and domestic viol ence.

9:31:48 AM

COM SSIONER  HUMMEL stated that the size of the mlitary
community dermands that DWA tackle the difficult issues head-on
and the departnment was doi ng so. She asserted that DWA works to

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- March 22, 2016



protect its mlitary nen and wormen from sexual assault and
donmestic violence and the departnent has learned a |lot of
val uabl e | essons as foll ows:

* Creating safe work places.

» Fostering respectful coll eagues.

* Inmportance of clear know edge that everyone serves under a
supportive command structure, work environnment, and |iving
envi ronment .

COWMM SSI ONER HUMVEL reveal ed t hat DWA has done the foll ow ng:

* Launched and woul d continue conprehensive and w de-rangi ng
efforts to rai se awar eness of sexual assaul t and
har assnent .

e Instituted neasures and safeguards to protect victimns.

* Initiated the Alaska National GQuard  Sexual Assaul t
Prevention Program for 24/7 statewide crisis intervention
and support services to victins of sexual assault.

 Wrks closely with the Alaska Network on Donestic Viol ence
and Sexual Assault, and with the Council wth Donestic
Vi ol ence and Sexual Assault.

She revealed that she chairs nonthly neetings to review the
progress of all current and pending sexual assault cases that
touch within the National Guard famly. She remarked that she
did not think there was a state, local, or private enployer in
Al aska that has aggressively tackled sexual assault and donestic
vi ol ence as DWA.

9:33: 24 AM

She summarized that DWA would welcone an expansion and
strengthening of its connection with CDVSA, the result would
benefit Al askans statew de. She added that SB 150 woul d provide
budgetary advantages where DWA could share information wth
CDVSA about prograns and services that the departnent provides
to eligible victins using federal funds for up to 100 percent
conti nuation pay during recovery and funding i ntensi ve
counseling typically by private sector professionals as part of
an integrated approach to maximze the opportunity for survivor
recovery.

She shared sexual assault and donestic violence statistics with
the commttee as foll ows:

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 22, 2016



e 2008 study found that the average cost of a sexual assault
nationwi de is over $150, 000.

e 50 percent of victins will not be able to work in their
current jobs for a year after an assault due to the
severity of their nental health injuries.

* Violence and substance abuse constitute up to a third of
the cost of health care nationally, or about $750 billion
dol lars a year.

COWM SSI ONER HUMMEL set forth that the mlitary ethos dictates
that a battle buddy is never |eft behind. She stated that DWA
does not shirk from doing everything possible to enable a sexual
assault or donestic violence survivor to return to full nental
and physical health. She asserted that DWA has hel ped set a new
standard for victim and survivor support. She stated that DWA
has seen solid progress, but work regarding sexual assault and
donmestic violence would never be done. She said she was
commtted to remaining vigilant and ready to tackle difficult
situations |ike sexual assault and donestic violence, and |ooked
forward to working nore closely with CDVSA

9: 35: 37 AM

SENATOR HUGA NS noted that the mpjority of CDVSA nenbers had
Juneau addresses. He asked that Comnm ssioner Hummel comment on
CDVSA' s geogr aphi cal diversity.

COWM SSI ONER HUMVEL replied that geographical diversity for the
CDVSA was inportant. She remarked that she was surprised to hear
of so many Juneau locations. She said she would encourage
menbership from all around the state to include rural
comuni ties.

SENATOR HUGGE NS agreed with Conm ssioner Hummel. He noted that
CDVSA nenbers included comm ssioners and deputy conm ssioners.
He asked why Conmi ssioner Humrel would want to be on the council
rat her than the provost marshal or head nurse.

COWM SSI ONER HUMVEL replied that the governor requested that she
personally be a nenber. She opined that her appointnent was
perhaps to send a nessage of how inportant the issue of sexual
assault and donestic violence was to the admnistration. She
added that recognizing past issues and concerns wthin the
National Guard was inportant in order to show the strongest
encour agenent and support from the top of the chain of comrand.
She stated that should there be a desire for someone other than
herself to represent DWA on the council, there was a |arge

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 22, 2016



nunber of qualified DWA individuals that she had full faith and
confi dence in.

9:38:41 AM

CARMEN LOWRY, Executive Director, Alaska Network on Donmestic
Vi ol ence and Sexual Assault (ANDVSA), testified in support of SB
150. She explained that ANDVSA was a coalition of 23 agencies
working to prevent and respond to donestic violence and sexual
assault in Alaska. She set forth that adding the conm ssioner of
DWA to CDVSA would provide a person with an understanding of
the challenges mlitary personnel face. She requested that the
committee ensure equity anmong state and public nmenbers that an
additional public nmenber from a rural area be added to CDVSA as

well. She noted that a public nenber was added when a
representative from the Departnent of Corrections was added to
the council in 2009 in order to maintain the public-to-state

menber rati o.

9:42:11 AM

SENATOR W ELECHONSKI asked if M. Lowy was asking for another
menber or for a public nmenber to be replaced with a rural
menber .

M5. LOARY replied that ANDVSA would ask for another nenber be
added and that the individual be a rural nenber as well.

VICE-CHAIR COGHI LL noted that CDVSA currently required one
appoi ntnent froma rural area.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI reviewed the CDVSA nenber list and noted
that he did not see a rural address.

VI CE-CHAIR COGHI LL noted that the law required the governor to
consult ANDVSA for CDVSA appointnents. He asked how ANDVSA cones
up with its recomrendati ons.

M5. LOARY replied that ANDVSA was very nmuch involved in the
nom nations list for recomending different kinds of public
menbers to be placed on the council. She reiterated that ANDVSA
woul d reconmend that an additional public nmenber be added from a
rural area. She detailed that the public mnenbership would
increase fromfour to five nenbers.

VICE-CHAIR COGHI LL concurred that he saw the benefit for an
addi tional rural-public nmenber.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- March 22, 2016



SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if sexual assault and donestic violence
statistics between rural and urban areas were equal .

9:45: 25 AM

M5. LOARY replied that she could not say what the exact nunbers
were. She remarked that rural areas present challenges due to
i sol ation and access to services. She said rural issues conpound
victins' safety which was the reason the request for another
rural voice be added to the council.

SENATOR HUGGE NS said that he supports balancing the council with
anot her public menber; however, the question for the conmttee
was whether to add the DWA conmi ssioner to the CDVSA council.
He asserted that Comm ssioner Hummel was a super capable |ady
and there was not hing negative about her.

9:47: 04 AM
At ease.

9:47. 28 AM

VI CE-CHAIR COGHILL called the committee back to order. He noted
that conmttee staff pointed out that CDVSA council nenbers were
from other regions in the state, but their nmiling addresses
wer e noted as Juneau.

9:49:13 AM

JAYNE ANDREEN, Chair, President, Alaska Wnen's Lobby, Al aska
Public Health Association, Douglas, Al aska, testified in support
of SB 150. She specified her background as foll ows:

e Chair for the statewide steering conmttee for the Al aska
Wnen's Lobby, a voluntary group with individuals dedicated
to working to ensure and pronote the well being of children,
wonen, and fam|lies.

* President of the Alaska Public Health  Association
consi sting of approximtely 200 statew de nenbers of public
heal t h prof essi onal s.

e Spent 16 years working in donestic violence and sexual
assault, specifically as the director of the Council on
Donestic Violence and Sexual Assault in the 1990s.

She confirnmed that the CDVSA public nenber addresses indicate
Juneau, but the nenbers cane from Anchorage, Unal akl eet, Honer,
and Palnmer. She added that the |anguage for council nenber
designation allows for, "Comm ssioners or their designee." She
noted that state departnental designees have consisted of
conmi ssi oners, deputy conmm ssioners, and division directors. She

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- March 22, 2016



said each conm ssioner determines who represents their
depart nment.

M5. ANDREEN revealed that she started working in donestic
vi ol ence and sexual violence in Alaska in 1981. She expl ained
that CDVSA was originally set up to provide a coordinated
response. She detailed that the original seven-nenber council
consisted of four departnent representatives and three public
menbers in order to coordinate expertise between state
government and public nenbers. She noted that CDVSA was touted
across the country when the Violence Against Wnen Act passed
and the council's nenbership infrastructure in addressing sexual
assault and domestic violence was pointed out. She reveal ed that
Senator McKinnon facilitated a task force in the |late 2000s that
reviewed CDVSA and she was asked to testify on recomendations
for changes. She noted that a CDVSA council nenber appointnment
was added for the Departnent of Corrections and she recomended
at the tine that balance be maintained by adding a rural-public
menber as wel | .

9:52:46 AM

She sunmarized that the Alaska Wnen's Lobby and the Public
Health Association both support SB 150. She added that two
organi zations that she represented al so supported increasing the
public nmenbership fromfour to five individuals, resulting in an
11-menber council with 6 departnents represented and 5 public
menbers.

VI CE-CHAI R COGHI LL asked Ms. Andreen to confirm that the counci
currently consisted of 9 nenbers.

MS. ANDREEN answer ed correct.

VI CE-CHAIR COGHI LL commented that he was surprised that no one
fromthe governor's office presented the bill. He set forth that
the suggestions presented to the conmmttee would be taken to
heart. He stated that further consultation would occur with the
governor's office regardi ng SB 150.

SENATOR HUGGE NS added that not having representation from the
governor's office was highly unusual and he was enbarrassed for
Conmmi ssi oner Hummel .

9:54: 44 AM

VICE-CHAIR COGHI LL announced that SB 150 would be held in
commi ttee.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- March 22, 2016



9: 55: 03 AM

There being no further business to cone before the commttee,
Vice-Chair Coghill adjourned the Senate State Affairs Committee
at 9:55 a.m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- March 22, 2016



